Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2010 —ZE—ZTF+—-H=+—H

2010 2009
Note US$'000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights 4 {5 B 6 654 6,472
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 7 174,013 189,577
Intangible assets mEE 8 15,049 16,178
Prepayment for property, plant and I ERN Y
equipment Z BRI RRIE 200 1,103
Investment in associate REEERF2IKE 10 1,230 =
Total non-current assets JEMBNE EBTE 191,146 213,330
Current assets REBEE
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEZEIH 2B
BE - 2,959
Trade receivables FEWE F R K 11 40,328 26,937
Inventories FE 12 83,193 65,596
Amount due from a minority JE W BT B 2 A
shareholder of a subsidiary D EHG R FE 1,308 1,288
Prepayments and other receivables TETRIE R EAM
FE Y IR 7,950 7,849
Current income tax recoverable BNERFT SR & &= - 46
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 13 34,536 39,614
167,315 144,289
Non-current assets held for sale BIELEERBEE 6 12,415 -
Total current assets MEEEHEE 179,730 144,289
Total assets BmEE 370,876 357,619
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of EATHEREAEMN
the Company =
Share capital A& s 14 15,228 15,228
Reserves =]
— Proposed final dividend —E@ZAHRE 15, 26 3,670 4,840
— Others —H A 15 245,647 248,898
264,545 268,966
Non-controlling interest FEFE AR M = 1,631 2,685
Total equity ERBHE 266,176 271,651

The notes on pages 58 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEEEER

As at 31 December 2010 —ZE—ZTF+—-H=+—H

2010 2009
Note Us$’000 US$'000
Bt 5 SPESTE Fx=T
LIABILITIES affE
Non-current liabilities kREBEME
Long-term bank borrowings REIRITEE 17 15,259 16,222
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMEBHAR 18 7,513 8,050
Long-term payable to a related party ENBEREALTZ
R EAFRIA 34(d) 2,074 4,031
Provision for long service payment REIREEEE 1,179 1,119
Total non-current liabilities FABEEREE 26,025 29,422
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JET & SR 16 26,030 13,043
Accruals and other payables FEEHE A R H Aty
FE T3R8 19,847 12,428
Due to related parties FERBRAEA T
FRIE 34(d) 2,280 2,043
Short-term bank borrowings HMHRTEE 17 23,596 23,252
Current portion of long-term bank RERITEES
borrowings BV ER & 17 17 4,279 3,123
Current income tax liabilities ENEAFTETi B E 2,643 2,657
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 78,675 56,546
Total liabilities BEAR 104,700 85,968
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAT 370,876 357,619
Net current assets REBEEFHE 101,055 87,743
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 292,201 301,073

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

MHEBRRCEEESERIA TIALRRESZ

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
R 3

Director Director

BF BF

The notes on pages 58 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNES8E 122 B MM L Th B R A7 & M TS SR 1) — BB 17 o
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Balance Sheet
BEEEER

As at 31 December 2010 —ZE—ZTF+—-H=+—H

2010 2009
Note US$'000 US$'000
Bt 5 FTEx F=T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets EBREE 8 5,037 6,246
Investments in subsidiaries, at cost HMBARKRE
(R A) 9 170,390 170,390
Long-term loan to a subsidiary BT BB AT
ZERBER 9 10,500 2,700
Investment in associate REERNRZEZE 10 1,230 -
Total non-current assets FRBEEAE 187,157 179,336
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JE W Bt /B 2 Rl RUIE 9 52,150 59,885
Prepayments and other receivables TEfT RIB R E A
& Yk I8 396 400
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHFEEZEEY 13 1,151 3,866
Total current assets REBEEARH 53,697 64,151
Total assets BEE 240,854 243,487
EQUITY -
Equity attributable to owners of RRBER AR
the Company 2%
Share capital & s 14 15,228 15,228
Reserves it
— Proposed final dividend —EBEARHARE 15, 26 3,670 4,840
- Others —EAh 15 207,032 205,748
Total equity ERBE 225,930 225,816
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liability FREBEE
Long-term payable to a related party ERNBHREALTZ
REIRIA 34(d) 2,074 4,031
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FE5T & A K H fth e At
EQr 1,282 3,035
Short-term bank borrowings RERIRTTIEE 17 9,288 8,734
Due to a related party JEfNBREALFIE  34(d) 2,280 1,871
Total current liabilities mESEAHE 12,850 13,640
Total liabilities BfEAE 14,924 17,671
Total equity and liabilities ERREBEEE 240,854 243,487
Net current assets RBEEFEHE 40,847 50,511
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBESE 228,004 229,847

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

MBRRECEETGEHRIL A TIALTRRER

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang

B B
Director Director
EFE o

The notes on pages 58 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE=ZZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
Note us$’000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx FZET
Revenue U 2 19 336,107 289,137
Cost of sales $HE AR 21 (278,251) (217,805)
Gross profit EF 57,856 71,332
Other losses — net HihEE— 58 20 (2,076) (2,937)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX 21 (16,393) (14,452)
Administrative expenses T 21 (24,897) (30,068)
Compensation to farmers BEREE 22 (11,807) =
Operating profit LR 2,683 23,875
Finance income B B A 968 747
Finance costs 2] (1,696) (1,594)
Finance costs — net PHEH—FE 23 (728) (847)
Profit before income tax B BT 18 % A 25 A 1,955 23,028
Income tax expense Fri5#i B X 24 (4,582) (5,234)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (FE) BER 25 (2,627) 17,794
(Loss)/profit attributable to: T &HEMN (FE)
/A
Owners of the Company RRARHEE A (1,480) 17,983
Non-controlling interest FEPE AR = (1,147) (189)
(2,627) 17,794
(Losses)/earnings per share for (loss)/ ARNBEE AEG
profit attributable to the owners of the FA(EBE)
Company during the year i M 2 TR
(BB, /&
Basic (losses)/earnings per share BREXR (FE),
(expressed in US cents) ER (LLEALED) 27 (0.10) 1.18
Diluted (losses)/earnings per share SR#E (FE)
(expressed in US cents) BRI (AEAF) 27 (0.10) 1.18
Dividends BRE 26 3,670 8,992

The notes on pages 58 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BN FESBE122 B W LTI AR & B TS R /) — &0 19
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
ReEzEWmEE

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE=ZZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HILEFE

2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER F=T
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (FEB)ER (2,627) 17,794
Other comprehensive income Ht 2 mE KA
Currency translation differences ME N = 1,992 99
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEERXHE(BR) WALE
for the year (635) 17,893
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTEAELZ2E (BE) WA
for the year attributable to: A
— Owners of the Company S WNEIE 2PN 419 18,087
- Non-controlling interest —IE R R (1,054) (194)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEERE (FE) WALE
for the year (635) 17,893

The notes on pages 58 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BN FESE122 B WML Th AR & B S R /) — &0 19
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MREEREEX

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE=ZZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREEEAES
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger Retained  controlling
capital premium reserve reserve earnings interest Total
BRA  ROEE ERRE  AHEE  REBERN  FERER @zt

US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US§'000  US$'000
TXL TET TET TXL TER TET TXL

Balance at 1 January 2009 RZZFNE-R—BZ&# 15,228 47,358 10,204 79,994 102,247 2,879 257,910
Comprehensive income 2EHA

Profit/(loss) for the year KEERFH,/ (BE) = = = - 17,983 (189) 17,794
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2EMA -

Currency translation differences ERZE® - - 104 - - (5) 99
Total comprehensive income EONE - - 104 - 17,983 (194) 17,893
Total transactions with owners HEBAZBRHE

Dividend paid BRRE - - - - (4,152) - (4,152)

Balance at 31 December 2009 RZBBAF+ZA=t-HZ

533 15,228 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 2,685 271,651
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZZ-FF-F—-Az&H 15,228 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 2,685 271,651
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Loss for the year REEER - - - - (1,480) (1,147) (2,627)
Other comprehensive income: H2ERA
Currency translation differences ERES = = 1,899 = = 93 1,992
Total comprehensive loss 2EBBLEE - - 1,899 - (1,480) (1,054) (635)
Total transactions with owners HEEAZBR5E
Dividend paid BRBRE - - - - (4,840) - (4,840)

Balance at 31 December 2010 R-Z-BF+-A=t+-H2
o33 15,228 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 1,631 266,176

The notes on pages 58 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BN ESSEN122BMME I BRARR M ERERW—&F 1D -

56 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIBS (325%) AR A T



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HREEERER

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE=ZZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HILEFE

2010 2009
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBEEZ
BeRE
Cash generated from operations ¥BEECRS 31 21,960 61,430
Interest paid BEATFLE (447) (524)
Income taxes paid [=ENREIEE (5,033) (6,960)
Net cash generated from operating REEBEEZ
activities ReFH 6,480 53,946
Cash flows from investing activities RETZHEEZ
ReERE
Purchases of property, plant and ﬁ%,ff*@% 7 &
equipment R 7 (16,802) (37,478)
Long-term prepayment of property, R
plant and equipment 2 KRR FIE 903 3,297
Proceeds from sale of property, HEW X H%&
plant and equipment R 2 TS RIE 31 166 44
Purchases of intangible assets and BERVEER
land use rights &+ b {5 R A 6, 8 (1,633) (88)
Redemption of held-to-maturity BRFAEEIEZ
financial assets WIBEE 2,959 -
Investment in an associate REEE R 28 E 10 (1,230) =
Interest received from held-to-maturity BElEHEERE JHﬁZ
financial assets MBEEZHE 61 405
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBFMAREFRE (15,576) (33,820)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEFTEELEZ
HEeERE
Dividends paid B 26 (4,840) (4,152)
Net change in short-term bank Eﬁﬁfﬁfﬂﬁﬁ
borrowings SEnEE 344 (15,408)
Proceeds from long-term bank Eﬁﬂfﬁfﬂﬁg
borrowings FT 1S 38 20,169 8,670
Repayment of long-term bank B ERRTEE
borrowings (19,976) (3,817)
Repayment of long-term payable EERE ﬂﬁkﬁﬂ:i
to Vedan Enterprise Corporation BHERA
(“Taiwan Vedan") ( Fé/ﬁuﬁiJ )2
R B P RRIE (2,145) (2,145)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBAZ
We (6,448) (16,852)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and fﬁ@&ﬁ%—rfﬁw
cash equivalents CRd) /g Fa (5,544) 3,274
Cash and cash equivalents REVzE2 KRS
at beginning of year ZEY 13 39,614 36,286
Exchange gains on cash and fﬁ%&fﬁ/\wfﬁwz
cash equivalents b 5, Wz 466 54
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRER
at end of year HEeZEEY 13 34,536 39,614

The notes on pages 58 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BN ESSE122B MM =B AR A B G R B — 610

Annual Report 2010 £3§ 57



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS HRAR M A

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, George Town P.O. Box
2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollar (“US$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

58  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BIES (325%) AR A T
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7] sl 9 EEE A A - Century Yard,
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Town P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PSR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The following interpretations and amendments/revisions
to standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010, but do not have
significant financial impact to the Group.

HKAS 17

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Leases (and consequential

amendment to HK(IFRIC)
—Int 4, "Leases —
Determination of the length
of lease term in respect of
Hong Kong land leases”)

Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements

Eligible Hedge Items

First-Time Adoption of HKFRSs

Additional Exemptions for

First-time Adopters

Group Cash-settled Share-

based Payment Transaction

Business Combinations (and

consequential amendments
to HKAS 27, “Consolidated
and Separate Financial
Statements”, HKAS 28
“Investments in Associates”
and HKAS 31 “Interests in
Joint Ventures”)

2 FEEHHBREE(EW)

2.1

mAEEE (H)

DA R 2 2 18 RE AT AR B ET 5
AR—_FT-—ZEF—A—BRKzH
BFEE R BB RERERT
AMETHAEBY EEREAH

B2 488
SR o

S g &R
F175

R G AR
F275R
(#&183T)

BT AR
£395%
(BETA)

EEVIBRE
ZERIZE 1587
(#&185T)

BEBMBRE
ZERIZE 158
(EETA)

&S0
s 2R
F258
(1BETA)

ERETBRE
YR 25358
(R&1&ET)

HE (REEE

(BB RS
REZBg) —
R E45% (78
E-BEEEBL
WwHEZ HE ]
ZHBIERTA)

wra KBS

HE

REBYHIAR

BRRBE BT

HEER

BIRRAE 2 BI

R

SEAREHEEIA

B mERE S
ZR5

EBas (kY

BB ER
E279% [#RE
K 38 57 B 7 3
=] -HEgH
AR ZE285% [H
RN o
wEIRES
SRR ZE315%
[REEREZ
| 2 Bk
1&35T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS HRAR M A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 TESBFEE (1)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE (&)

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for EBMBRE FBIELEERBE
Sale and Discontinued AE A 558 ERB&RIELEE
Operations (and X (REEBR
Consequential Amendment B 2RI
to HKFRS 1 “First Time 15% [ 8 RER 4
Adoption”) ZHIBIBETA)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash (BRI mEAADIK
Assets to Owners mERE FEREEE

ZEg)
— 2
BT

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfer of Assets from E’“ (BEIREITE REFEBEE
Customers HRE

iﬁQ
-2
F185%

HK - Int 5 Presentation of financial EE-nE Wz 225 —
statements — Classification 558 BRAHEE
by the borrower of a ZHERIGRZ
term loan that contains EHERZHH
a repayment on demand
clause

The following new standard and interpretation, REEWEBFERMATERME

amendments/revision to standards and interpretation RZZE—ZF-A—HHRBZHVEK

have been issued, but are not effective for the financial iﬁﬁﬁiiiﬂlz%ﬁ‘&ﬁll&éﬁ% < 2ER
year beginning 1 January 2010 and have not been early RBRBZBIAR1EE

adopted.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 BEHRZ%
MRz e A EN

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011

BB ERE245% (K1EF]) BERKE —=—%—H—H

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issue 1 February 2010

BB EREI2N (BFTA) #HERz2HH —ET-FTF=-A—H

Amendment to HKFRS 1 Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 1 July 2010

Disclosures for First-time Adopters
BEREMBMEERE 1R BRERNESR BB B REENETR 2 —E-FEFLA—H

EETA BRELBREHZARKR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PSR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 TESBFEEE (1)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RIS B8z 2%
R et LR
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
BB RS ERFEIR SHMITA —E—=F—H—H
Amendment to HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding 1 January 2011
—Int 14 Requirement

2R (HRMBHRERE
ZEg)-REF14%
Zﬂ?uTZK

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

REESBRZBMNKRA —ZE——%—H—H

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity 1 July 2010
Instruments

58 (HREM B HmERE NIRRT AEEHS R A B

Z8g)-R2BEE19%R

—T—ZTF+H—H

The Group has already commenced an assessment of

AEE T RmETERA R ER)

the related impact of adopting the above new standard, HAIRZBEZETAR M HAS
amendments/revision to standards and interpretations EHERE  RNEE R ARGEEERS

7KAA$'§IZA‘E+BZ R ok 1 7% ¥

to the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state

whether substantial changes to the Group’s accounting RIEREEERE

policies and presentation of the financial statements will

result.

In addition, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public N R=ZZT—FFH A BAEGE

Accountants also published a number of amendments
for the existing standards under its annual improvement
project published in May 2010. These amendments are
not expected to have a significant financial impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.

MASRNEFESEHRRPRMZ
REBRITERAZER] - AR FER]

TEHAKE 2 EERMBMNE
RERFEZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS HRAR M A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PSR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
(Note 2.6a) in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income (Note 2.6).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
The financial interests of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes in consideration by
the Company arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

2

FEEHRRER (1)

22 A (#E)

(a)

HEAA (&)

Fraga (8 - #H ULIE 5 B (1
SRR AR R 25 & B B AT ] SE AT Y
U E T B IR AN i 2 A MR R
HAFEBLDATKEZ]
BRAEEFEZAFENE
BETFERg B - (WIEBREE A
ROTE I T » 5% SRR AR A AT U
MBAREEFAEZAFE
(MisE2.6a) - RIBRAZZERE
EEE2ERERAER (M
2.6)°

SEARRERS  HEHREAR
BHUW R T AR - REIRE
BIR T LA - AN R H BT B
RAZHBHEEBRBERT
ETER UERTEAEHE
PRERAN 2 UK ©

KRB AR ZRETEAA
BB EARR - A BIEARR A
R AREETELENRE-
AT BIERENEZEHK
RoHBARZEERARA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS HRAR M A

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PSR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. The financial interests of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS HRAR M A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors collectively.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “finance costs — net”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “other losses
- net”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial

assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PSR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each consolidated
income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS HRAR M A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 TESBFEE (1)
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 YE- -BEERRE

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 20 - 50 years
- Plant and machinery 10 — 20 years
- Office equipment and

other fixed assets 5 — 8 years
- Motor vehicles 5 — 8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within “other losses — net”, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PSR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(©)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in “intangible
assets”. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating
segment.

Trademarks, brand names and licences

Separately acquired trademarks, brand names
and licences are shown at historical cost less
accumulated impairment. Trademarks, brand names
and licences have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of trademarks, brand names and
licences over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10
years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries or
associate and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
or associate is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries or
associate in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probably.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
held-to-maturity. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
trade and other receivables (Note 2.11),
amount due from a minority shareholder of a
subsidiary, loan to a subsidiary and amounts
due from subsidiaries in the balance sheet.

Held-to-maturity financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group were to sell other than
an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
financial assets, the whole category would be
tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.
Held-to-maturity financial assets are included
in non-current assets, except for those with
maturities less than 12 months from the
balance sheet date, which are classified as
current assets.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Financial assets

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
financial assets are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

2.9.3 Impairment
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Spare parts and consumables are included within
inventories and stated at cost, using the weighted
average method.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement within selling and
marketing costs. When a trade receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against selling and marketing
costs in the consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associate operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associate,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations
The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which are generally
held in independently administered funds. The
Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

(b)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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B RS HR AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHHEHE(H)

POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued) 217 BERR (&)

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.18 Contingent liabilities and provisions

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, if any.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS HRAR M A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEEE(H|)

POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue and other income recognition

2.19 W=k EAn g AR

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.
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B RS HR AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue and other income recognition (continued)
(b)  Sales of surplus electricity
Sales of surplus electricity are recognised based on
units of electricity sold as recorded by meters during
the year.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(d)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.20 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS HRAR M A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Dividend distribution

A dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors
wherever appropriate. Dividend proposed or declared
after the balance sheet date are disclosed as a post
balance sheet event and are not recognised as a liability
at the balance sheet date.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk and cash flow
and fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess
liquidity.
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B ISR M A

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

0)

(if)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Vietnam Dong against US$. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations.
The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange risk.

At 31 December 2010, if the Vietham Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss (2009: profit) for the year would
have been US$937,000 (2009: US$1,088,000)
higher/lower (2009: lower/higher), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and trade payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest-rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS HRR M A

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
(continued)
At 31 December 2010, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss (2009: profit) for the year would
have been US$149,000 (2009: US$72,000)
higher/lower (2009: lower/higher), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary and other
receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limit is regularly monitored.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary and other receivables
included in the consolidated balance sheets
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to these financial assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputation. As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 13 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the amount
due from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all
the balance is within credit period, management
are of opinion that the receivable from a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
(Note 13) on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

82  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited k3 BIBE (25%) R A =

3

MERRETE (&)
M EBREE (&)

3.1

(b)

(c)

=B (&)
R=F-TFER_ZFTNF
ToA=+—R ER—REH
B AR — B DB RFRIA L &
BEISORE - MR 2 BB RS
EEEHN EEERREW
—FHMEB AR —& D BRRK
R EERRRE-

RZE-—ZFFR_ZFTNF
TZRA=+—H " MY
TR AR E R - /e
WHIBY NEEREEE B
BERRZSERZEER
BIK -

HEE TR

HRARERBNEAREFE
B ARERREETTRR
EREERNENERBES

Hoko

B i%*ﬁﬂt’)%}ﬁﬁzqiﬁﬁumi m
BEASENRDE S HENR
TIOR3 AR IR & B R
EMRe KRB ERY (MHE
3) AEEFTAREK  EHE
SZAREHZRBESFEKX
NEETERZBEZBER A
BREARFZHMRSEEBAR

X 2P BB iGRiRHEN
B NRNEEHERES
ZRBEEFEKL-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS HRAR M A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BERGEE (1)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBREBEZE (F&)
The table below analyses the Group's and the Company’s THRBIREEBES LI B AR
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based THES T ASEE kAR ARERBR
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the F BB R TS B fE - MRIBH IR E
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the ZERARERARTRRERE -

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—-FR —FEWE WEERLF BBRF &t

US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Group e |
At 31 December 2010  RZFT—ZTF+_A=1—H
Bank borrowings (Note) $R7Tf5 & (HisE) 24,852 606 21,412 - 46,870
Trade payables BB 58K 26,030 - - - 26,030
Long-term payable to ~ ENBEBEA L2 REHIE

a related party 2,145 2,166 - - 4,311
Other payables H A & 14 508 19,847 - - = 19,847
Due to related parties  FEfTARE A TFIE 323 = = = 323
At 31 December 2009 HRZTTAF+=A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 24,538 600 21,200 = 46,338
Trade payables ERE 5 8RK 8,012 - - - 8,012
Long-term payable to ~ ENEEEALZREAHE

a related party 2,145 2,145 2,166 - 6,456
Other payables H & 13 508 12,428 = = = 12,428
Due to related parties ~ FEfT A BEA LA 172 - - - 172
Company NG
At 31 December 2010  RZF—TF+_A=1—H
Bank borrowings (Note) $R{THE & (KiaE) 9,495 - - - 9,465
Long-term payable to  ERNABEALZ RBHKEA

a related party 2,145 2,166 - - 4,311
At 31 December 2009  HRZFTZNFFT_A=1+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 8,970 = = - 8,970
Long-term payable to  ENBBEA T2 REHIE

a related party 2,145 2,145 2,166 - 6,456
Note: 5T -
The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings up to EEBBEREEABRITEERZRRLSS
their respective maturities. B B R FE AT A B
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B ISR M A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HERREE(E)
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 BEXEBER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
equity holders’ equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. Total borrowings include non-current
borrowings and current borrowings.

AEBEERES ZBRRREARE
BRFEKE ARRRBEREHLA
AR B ARG - A REREE
ZEREBAR DB R Z B

RTHRFAREELRGEE ARER
BERELNTRRZBESHE Mk
RBEEER BIOHBROIHEERE
VAR BE (R 75 o

HERNEMAR—H NEEREE
BEL R ERERE R - R E AR
SEREBBRMATIDREARITEE
BRUABRHERE R At & - BERE
FEIEME B R R BN &R

During 2010, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged RZZE—ZF AEBEZRIHE_-T
from 2009, was to maintain a minimal gearing ratio. The Tﬂiﬁﬁ%%%ffﬁi B DHERE
gearing ratios at 31 December 2010 and 2009 were as EBBLERGEKFE RZT—F
follows: FRZZENFTZA=1T—HZ
BEEBGBLENT:
Group
rEH
2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FXx5x FET
Total bank borrowings (Note 17) HMIRTTEE (MiE17) 43,134 42,597
Owners’ equity (including WmEAZ R
non-controlling interest in equity) (BB AR 2
FERERRAER) 266,176 271,651
Gearing ratio BEAMRLE 16% 16%

Management considers that the current gearing ratio is
reasonable.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturity. The fair value of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes or estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

3.4 Financial instruments by category — Group and
Company
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, all financial assets
are loans and receivables and all financial liabilities are
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 8).

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations and valuations require the use of judgements
and estimates.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (continued)

During the year, management made a provision on its
property, plant and equipment in Shandong based on a
five-year cash flow forecast. The recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use post-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. The
discount rate used in the cash flow forecast is 10%.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives vary with previously estimated. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Current income taxes and deferred income taxes

(continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Board of Directors collectively. The Directors review the
Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that
are used to make strategic decisions. These reports include
segment revenue, segment assets and capital expenditures.

The chief operating decision-makers consider the business
from a geographical aspect. In presenting information on the
basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based on
the geographical presence of customers. Segment assets and
capital expenditures are based on the geographical location of
the assets.

Since the Group is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and
selling of MSG products in which the gross profit would not
differentiate much in geographical location, the chief operating
decision makers mainly assess the performance based on
revenue derived by each geographical segment. Accordingly,
the segment performance is restricted to revenue information.

In 2010 and 2009, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10 per cent of the Group's
total revenue.

4
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b e
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) SHMEH (H)
(i) Segment revenue (i) D=
2010 2009
us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam #iE 170,003 150,562
The PRC A 51,790 54,697
Japan EEN 66,429 56,370
Taiwan = 5,781 6,363
ASEAN member countries RipAk B BXR
(other than Vietnam) (T EEwm) 25,975 14,211
Other regions H b= 16,129 6,934
336,107 289,137
(ii) Capital expenditures (i) BEAXZH
2010 2009
Us$'000 uUs$'000
FEr FET
Vietnam i) 16,794 37,279
The PRC a3 1,641 287
18,435 37,566
Capital expenditures are allocated based on where the EART W TYIRIEE EFTE MmO -
assets are located.
Capital expenditures comprise additions of land use BARAY HBIEH T FERE WX
rights, property, plant and equipment and intangible BERZRENEFEEZAE  BIF
assets, including additions resulting from acquisitions BREGEHETWENRE -
through business combinations.
(iii) Total assets (iii) BEE
2010 2009
us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam i) 300,089 286,144
The PRC a3 67,905 67,121
Hong Kong B 2,032 3,344
Taiwan =] 785 946
Singapore 3 oan 65 64
370,876 357,619

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are

located.

88  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited k3 BB (25%) AR A =

REETRBEEMAEM M DA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS HRR M A

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

it 5 A 4
AEERLERE I EREERFAOZ
BEER EREFEITET

2010 2009
us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Held outside Hong Kong EBBAINGE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +E&EERT+F2HY 654 6,472
2010 2009
us$'000 Us$'000
FErx FET
At 1 January m—A—8 6,472 6,609
Exchange differences N ZEHE 196 7
Additions NE 1,502 -
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 21) T HbfE AR S (FFRE21) (86) (144)
Transfer to non-current assets RS IEHEIERE
held for sale (Note ii) &&= (MisEi) (7,430) =
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8” 654 6,472
Notes: b=
(i) In respect of the Group's land use rights, Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) (i) RAEBEN T HFEREmS  =FARF

Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Maotai”), Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd
(“Shanghai Vedan”) and Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Snowflake”), subsidiaries established and
operating in the PRC, have been granted rights to use the land by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which expire in 2042, 2055,
2056 and 2060 respectively.

(ii) In September 2010, Shanghai Vedan signed an agreement with
an independent third party for sales of certain land use rights and

property, plant and equipment.

As at report date, the transfer procedures have not been
completed. Management expects the sales to be completed
in 2011. The relevant land use rights and property, plant and
equipment amounted to US$12,415,000, are transferred to
non-current assets held for sale.

R REEHHBARXRER®D (EP)
BRAA ([EFKZE]) - EBKRARE
BRATE ([ EBKRT]) RILEKRTSE
BEXERAT([WLERSIE]) BEEERA
ERETAHATFEN T ERE 55l
RZTM=F ZTRAF ZTAF
ARZBREFER-

(OIS

ol
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st
B
EE
i
off
-H
H_
=3
b
i
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i
%
&

HEREAH AHESEFENRATRK -
ERERPEREEER - —FAT
BX o B BB {E #12,415,0003% 7T & + 1 (£
AEMYE BERIBCEBEZFED
EIERBEE-
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7 PE-EBEREMK

Office
equipment
and other
fixed assets
Construction Plant and Motor  HMAZERE
in progress Properties machinery vehicles REM Total
HEIR WE  BERES AE EEEE A&
UsD'000 UsD'000 usD’000 UsD’000 usD’000 usD’000
xR TET FET FTEn TET TET
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZhE-A-H
Cost A 13,067 88,002 354,138 8,543 30,886 494,636
Accumulated depreciation ZitE - (40,268) (235,144) (6,651) (26,747) (308,810)
Accumulated impairment ZitRE - (141) (2,009) - (4) (2,154)
Net book amount REFE 13,067 47,593 116,985 1,892 4,135 183,672
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZENE
TZAZ+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 13,067 47,593 116,985 1,892 4,135 183,672
Exchange differences ERER - 12 19 (1) 1 31
Additions NE 36,614 73 243 230 318 37,478
Transfer iz (37,548) 13,139 23,507 288 614 -
Disposals HE - - (42) 43) 3) (88)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (Hak21) - (4311) (22,488) (450) (834) (28,083)
Impairment loss BEEE - (923) (2,492) - (18) (3,433)
Closing net book amount EREEEE 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 4,213 189,577
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZAE+=ZA=+-H
Cost A 12,133 101,228 377,713 8,706 31,772 531,552
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE - (44,581) (257,480) (6,790) (27,537) (336,388)
Accumulated impairment ZiHRE - (1,064) (4,501) - (22) (5,587)
Net book amount REFE 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 4,213 189,577
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-Z-%2f
TZRAZ+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 4,213 189,577
Exchange differences ERES - 352 566 26 14 958
Additions NE 15,202 - 1,168 243 189 16,802
Transfer iz (20,637) 5,050 15,446 - 141 -
Disposals HE - (70) (491) - (107) (668)
Depreciation (Note 21) W& (M21) - (5,055) (19,234) (449) (878) (25,616)
Impairment loss BEEE - (498) (1,557) - - (2,055)
Transfer to non-current assets BREERELEHRRDEE
held for sale (Note 6) (FizE6) - (4,985) - - = (4,985)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 6,698 50,377 111,630 1,736 3.572 174,013
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-ZF5+-A=+-H
Cost A 6,698 102,547 402,442 8,849 31,523 552,059
Accumulated depreciation ZitE - (50,608) (284,754) (7,113) (27,929) (370,404)
Accumulated impairment ZitRE - (1,562) (6,058) - (22) (7,642)
Net book amount R FE 6,698 50,377 111,630 1,736 3,572 174,013
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group is pledged
as security for the Group’s short-term and long-term bank

borrowings as follows:

WX -WERRM ()
REBAETHE  BERREEER A
DR AEENERRERBRITEEWAT

2010 2009
Us$'000 Us$'000
SFEZ FET
Net book amount of pledged property, EEEME - BERZE
plant and equipment (Note 35) BREF A (MIFE35) 22,715 14,206

Depreciation expense of US$21,691,000 (2009: US$23,536,000)
has been charged in cost of sales, US$49,000 (2009:
US$55,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
US$3,876,000 (2009: US$4,492,000) in administrative expenses.

& X 121,691,000k (—TET h &
23,536,00055 7T ) 49,000% 7T (— 2T A,
4 : 55,0003 J© ) #13,876,000% Jt ( = T
TN 4,492,000 70) ERHE KA
HER AT URITERAX A K-

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 EERE
Group Company
AEE NG|
Software
Goodwill  and licence  Brand name  Trademarks Total  Trademarks
BE BARER m g At ;]
TET TET TET TET TER TET
At 1 January 2009 R-ZBZhF-FA—H
Cost %N 8,310 1,423 1,142 12,089 22,964 12,089
Accumulated amortisation EHE (158) (290) (342) (4,634) (5,424) (4,634)
Net book amount EHEE 8,152 1,133 800 7,455 17,540 7,455
Year ended 31 December 2009 BZ-ZZhE
TZA=t-HLFE
Opening net book amount FNREEFE 8,152 1,133 800 7,455 17,540 7,455
Exchange differences EXER 7 - - - 7 -
Additions NE - 88 - = 88 =
Amortisation charge (Note 21) HEET (K1) - (134) (114) (1,209) (1,457) (1,209)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,159 1,087 686 6,246 16,178 6,246
At 31 December 2009 R-EBhE+=-A=1+—-H
Cost AR 8,317 1,511 1,142 12,089 23,059 12,089
Accumulated amortisation ZEtEH (158) (424) (456) (5,843) (6,881) (5,843)
Net book amount BREFHE 8,159 1,087 686 6,246 16,178 6,246
Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-2-3%
+ZA=t-RALEE
Opening net book amount FYRAFE 8,159 1,087 686 6,246 16,178 6,246
Exchange differences EHESE 230 - - = 230 =
Additions NE - 131 - - 131 -
Amortisation charge (Note 21) B % (MaE21) - (167) (114) (1,209) (1,490) (1,209)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
At 31 December 2010 R=Z2-BF+=-B=1+-H
Cost 5% 8,547 1,642 1,142 12,089 23,420 12,089
Accumulated amortisation 25t EH (158) (591) (570) (7,052) (8,371) (7,052)
Net book amount REFE 8,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BHHF P TR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ISR M A

8 H|EEE (M)

Impairment tests for goodwill BERE AR
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units NEBHEFEEED SRR 2 REGE
(“CGUs") identified according to operating segment. TEUDBEEE -
The PRC Vietnam
h R
MSG MSG
packaging packaging Total
R IR 45 B 4 &5t
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
F=ET FEx F=Ex
At 31 December 2010 R=ZF—FF+_H=+—H 7,659 730 8,389
At 31 December 2009 R-BZEAF+-_H=+—H 7,429 730 8,159

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate in which the CGU operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

B%HXEE/\””MZTHQ@%%@?&@%F@
a $r°u/<—rn HEREEE#HEZAEY
HEEFRARMATR 2 RETBRAETT 8
ﬁﬁE%Zﬁ@miﬁﬁﬁTﬁlJﬁéﬂE‘T
E-FEANERETESRRNERE
iug $¢Eﬁﬁ’\]§,ﬁﬁ¥ﬁ]iﬁzo

RAUtEERAEEZEERR

2010 2009

Gross margin ESp [
Discount rate IR xR

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market development. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of
goodwill are based would not cause the carrying amounts to
exceed its recoverable amounts.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

HMBELARAKRE MMEBLAFRMRE
REEEMEARRA-FLE

2010 2009

uUs$’000 Us$'000

FEx F=x

Unlisted shares, at cost I ET IR (RAAN) 170,390 170,390

In 2010, the long-term loan granted to a subsidiary is
unsecured, denominated in US$, repayable on 31 July 2013
and carries an interest at three-month SIBOR (2009: unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable on 14 March
2011). The carrying value of loan to a subsidiary approximates
its fair value.

In 2010, except for US$2,700,000 (2009: US$10,500,000),
which is a short-term loan to a subsidiary and is unsecured,
denominated in US$, repayable on 31 March 2011 and carries
an interest at three-month SIBOR (2009: unsecured, interest-
free, denominated in US$ and repayable on 31 July 2010), the
amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free,
denominated in US$ and repayable on demand.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2010:

R-IFE—ZF BT -—HMNBRARAZES
ERTEER UXTHERER-ZT
—=FtRA=+—HEZ LER=EAH
IERMITEAERSFE(ZEZAF R
T F=-"ATHEEER 28 &
ENFERER) -A—HHEB QR ER
ZEREEZROE R FE

MN-T—TF RERF  AETHE A
N_E——F=ZF=+—HEERR=E
A b3 88 17 [B 2 97 2 51 8. 22,700,000
Ex (ZZTZT A% :10,500,000%7w) (=
ETENE R_E-—TFLA=1+—HE
T BB RETEREE) R THE
REIEHERIN BRK B AR RELE
AR B BIARIAETTEHE - B R HES

fEE -

THAR-E—BEF A=+ —AME
EHEAT:

Particulars of

Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BRI/ R held
£ EMEY/ Rt FEEFREEHDS RAFE BERER
Directly held:
BERA -
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
("BVI") EEBREER of US$1 each
RERAES 100 GREE
1R TR L B
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
EBRAES EEBREER of US$1 each
100/ B REE
[EFH:ok:3il
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B 75 3R R BT =
9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9 HELFRRE MEARERR
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE ERREWRHEATRE -—XAFH
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued) (#8)
Particulars of
Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BET/HR held
=1 AL, MUY FEEBRREELH PR3 1B BFEER
Indirectly held:
EEFE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore $$106,067,921 100%
N TEF IR B 2R Ordinary shares
106,067,921
AN T E B AR
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore $$34,944,929 100%
3 TR IR B E R Ordinary shares
34,944,929
BN T Ak
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacture and sale of 131,970,000 100%
Corporation Limited iR fermentation-based food Ordinary shares of
WA () RO BR A additives and biochemical US$1 each
products and cassava starch- 131,970,000/%
based industrial products SREEIET
including MSG, GA, modified f 3 3E AR
starch, glucose syrup, soda and
acid in Vietnam and for export
M EE RHE B R INE
EREMRARERNIXER:
BERE 2B LITRH
BERER T RERITHEE A
Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.  PRC Packaging and sale of MSG and US$20,270,000 100%
K&EEm (EFM)ARAA H beverages in the PRC Registered capital
R EBE K ERE LR 20,270,000% T
B A
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sale of MSG 1,838,282 100%
HiFg in Vietnam Ordinary shares of
EHEREREERE US$1 each
1,838,282 &%
HE1ETH
TR
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS HRR M A

(%)

HWBARAKRE MMEBLAFIRM
BEREELREATRR-FLF

Particulars of

Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BRI/ HR held
=1 HEMAY, Rt FEEBREELH PR3 1B FHEER
Indlirectly held: (continuea)
BERA (&)
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC Manufacture and sale of MSG US$17,200,000 70%
Enterprise Co., Ltd. H in the PRC Registered capital
WRRASEEXFRRA TERE 4 EREERE 17,200,000 7
&R
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. PRC Packaging and sale of MSG US$9,800,000 100%
Ltd. H in the PRC Registered capital
HERAERER AR EREBEKHEERE 9,800,000 7T
A& A
Veyu Enterprise Co., Ltd. Vietnam Manufacture and sale of cassava 2,300,000 100%
=] starch-based industrial products Ordinary shares of
in Vietnam and for export US$1 each
EHEYUEREERZRN TE 2,300,000% & A%
EmHERR HEE1ETH
AR
Xiamen Darong Import & Export ~ PRC Trading of cassava starch-based US$254,000 100%
Trade Co., Ltd. H industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
EFIRSELNBSARAH EPEEBRERN TXER 254,000% 7T
Rl N
FBEREXERERAA PRC Property holding in the PRC RMB 104,600,000 98.97%
H ERBEFAEME Registered capital

AR #104,600,0007T
et & A
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10 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND 10 REBEZBAFIZERE—FEEREFLT
COMPANY
2010 2009
us$’000 us$'000
FEr FZET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRD (REA) 1,230 =
Movement on the investment in associate is as follows: REERNR 2 IHEEB SO
2010 2009
us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
As at 1 January m—A—H - -
Additions NE 1,230 -
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,230 -
The Group's and Company's share of the results of the REBRAANGEEEE QR ZHEE AR
associate and its assets and liabilities are as follows: EEERBEINEOT :
Country of Particulars of %
Name incorporation issued share capital interest held
2B HMRLER ERITRAFES BEEE%
Dacin International Holdings Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30
Limited FEHS US$1 each
EMBIBRZERBRA 4,100,0005% §% {5
FRI1ZET
Summary of financial information on associate — effective BEARZHBERNME-—BERES
interest
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profits
BE 8& Y 3= gl
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FEx FET FET
Effective interest BERER 1,230 = = =

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development BERNRANBEEENRERMEERE B
in Vietnam. As of 31 December 2010, the associate is inactive ZEET-TEHEF+_A=+—H BERAR
and has not identified any development project yet. W AER KR ARBAERERIER -
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES 11 BRRHER
EWE SRR AFENT !

The fair values of trade receivables are as follows:

Group
rEEH
2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx F=T
Trade receivables from third parties ERE=FESHER 41,600 29,447
Trade receivables from a related party R EEEALTE SRR
(Note 34(d)) (M4 5E34(d)) 250 267
Less: provision for impairment of trade I8 FEINE SR FOBE
receivables B (1,522) (2,777)
40,328 26,937

EUE SRR EERHESMNEE120
R MERE SRR REITAOT

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 120 days and the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables is as follows:

Group

REE
2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
SREZTE FET
Current Bl &R 27,666 17,252
31— 90 days 31E90K 8,906 7,171
91 - 180 days 91£ 180K 2,959 2,860
181 — 365 days 181%E365K 809 752
Over 365 days 365K A 1,510 1,679
41,850 29,714
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11

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of US$31,337,000
(2009: US$22,470,000) were fully performing.

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of US$7,372,000
(2009: US$4,083,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of those past
due but not impaired receivables is as follows:

11

Bl R ZIER (&)
R-ZB-—ZTFE+_A=1+—8 2B&EWK
531,337,000 L EWE SRHK (=ZFZ
& 122,470,000 7T) ©

R_E—ZTFE+_A=+—H &84
7,372,000 7t (Z T =T 1.4 : 4,083,000
EL)NEWRE ZERERE D HE XL KR
B ERBETIHAEE RSB
B E R A AR ERNEKFIER
BRER AT LT ¢

Group

rEE
2010 2009
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx Fx=T

Overdue by #0 Hi

Current to 90 days BN EFZ= 90K 5,722 3,947
91 - 180 days 912180k 1,636 57
Over 180 days 180K A £ 14 79
7,372 4,083

As of 31 December 2010, trade receivables of US$3,141,000
(2009: US$3,161,000) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was US$1,522,000 as of 31 December 2010 (2009:
US$2,777,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to wholesalers, which are in unexpectedly difficult
economic situations. It was assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

R-ZFE—ZTFF+-_A=+—H EKZ
S HEK3,141,000 L (=TT L F:
3,161,000 ) E FRE - R_ZE—%
F+_A=+—HBELEHNEBLEAR
1,522,000% L (ZZFZ L& : 2,777,000
FIr) o &R E A FE R IE = 2 B E RN
EOATERT O ERNSMALEEER Mo
FEWRIB R A AT T UE - 2 E e
WHIER R TOT

Group

rEE
2010 2009
Us$°000 US$'000
FER FET

Overdue by #60 5

91 days to 180 days 91 KE180K 1,626 1,548
181 days to 365 days 181K &E365XK - -
Over 365 days 365K A £ 1,515 1,613
3,141 3,161
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11

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 11 BERESBER(#E)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are REBEZEWE ZEXRERAAER T EE
denominated in the following currencies: FREE
Group
rEE
2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx F=T
Vietnam Dong WA 24,732 16,640
us$ ET 12,735 8,836
Renminbi AR 2,861 1,461
40,328 26,937
Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade REBZEWE ZERBBEREES DT
receivables are as follows: R
Group
rEH
2010 2009
US$’000 Us$'000
FTEx F=x
At 1 January R—H—H 2,777 427
Provision for receivables impairment JE W SR TR 1B B
(Note 21) (BFE21) 11 2,350
Unused amounts reversed (Note 21) BROAAEE (ME21) (1,266) =
At 31 December Rt+tZA=+—H 1,522 2,777

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement (Note 21). Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

e RERIR BUGRIAREREE S ARE
Wa R e [TTBF ]+ (FRE21) - R
BRMENSE - KRR EREZKREE

R R -
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R &R
12 INVENTORIES 12 &8
2010 2009
US$‘000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Spare parts and consumables T KB m 4,350 4,338
Raw materials JR# 46,914 37,877
Work in progress EH @ 4,771 2,979
Finished goods RUAK Th 27,158 20,402
83,193 65,596
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BREHAZIRFAHERRN ZFEK
in cost of sales amounted to US$241,547,000 (20009: K E241,547,000 L (ZZEZFENF
US$179,486,000). 179,486,000%7T) °
13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 13 ReRBR&ERY
Bank balances totaling US$8,945,000 (2009: US$11,861,000) R-_ZE—FFE+_-_A=+—H R1T4E
and US$24,421,000 (2009: US$23,868,000) as at 31 December B & 2£8,945,000F L (ZZEZ L F :
2010 were mainly placed with major state-owned financial 11,861,000 T ) &24,421,000% 7t (=
institutions in PRC and Vietnam, respectively. The remittance T E N4 :23,868,000%E T) D B 7F A F
of these funds out of the PRC and Vietnam is subject to the EhEENFERENGHE - ZEES
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese BEE H A B K B R 7838 < e B B R U Y
governments. HNEE B il $5 e
Group Company
rEH b NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000 uss$‘000 Us$'000
FE7x FET Fx5x F=T
Cash at bank and on hand  $R{TNERFES 28,046 27,863 1,151 3,866
Short-term bank deposits HHETHER 6,490 11,751 = =
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEEY 34,536 39,614 1,151 3,866
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13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

13 HeRBReFER/M (&)

ARERERRSSENHEUTRBH

following currencies: EE
Group Company
rEE b N/NE
2010 2009 2010 2009
US$°000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
FTER FET TER FET
Vietnam Dong WA 9,890 14,001 - =
us$ ETT 15,300 13,789 728 3,458
Renminbi AR 8,923 11,416 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 45 42 45 42
New Taiwan dollar et 378 366 378 366
34,536 39,614 1,151 3,866

The effective interest rate per annum of the Group’s short-term

bank deposits in 2010 was 12.5% (2009: 8.2%).

14 SHARE CAPITAL

—T-TEAREEEHRTERZEFE

BEAMEE125% (T ZEZBNFE:82%) °

14 EF

Authorised ordinary shares

EEEBER
Par value Number of
uUs$ shares uUs$’000
[EREE P 7 EE FEx
At 31 December 2009 and WRZZEE 4
31 December 2010 +—-—A=+—HXK
T ZTF+-A=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

ERTRARZEER
Par value Number of
uUs$ shares Us$’000
HEXT B3 & B FErx
At 31 December 2009 and RZZEE 4
31 December 2010 +—A=+—HK
T ZTF+ZHA=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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15 RESERVES 15 s
(a) Group (a) &&£H
(Note)
Merger
Share Exchange reserve Retained
premium reserve (&) earnings Total
R 1758 ER &G GO RE RE B &t
Us$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FTER TEr Txx Txr
At 1 January 2009 RZZETNE—A—H 47,358 10,204 79,994 102,247 239,803
Profit for the year AEE 5T - - - 17,983 17,983
Dividends R & - = = (4,152) (4,152)
Exchange translation B ERE
differences - 104 - - 104
At 31 December 2009 RZZETAF+-_A=1+—H 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 253,738
Representing: A :
2009 Final dividend BRERNZ-ZTNF
proposed REIAR S 4,840
Others Hity 111,238
Retained earnings asat R=ZTZTNE+-A=+—H
31 December 2009 ZIREBF 116,078
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—TF—-F—H 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 253,738
Loss for the year AFEEEE - - - (1,480) (1,480)
Dividends &8 - = = (4,840) (4,840)
Exchange translation X ERE
differences - 1,899 - - 1,899
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-TF+=-A=+—H 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 249,317
Representing: HIE
2010 Final dividend BERNZZZ-—ZF
proposed RS 3,670
Others HAoth 106,088
Retained earnings asat R-ZE—FTF+-A=1+—H
31 December 2010 ZREBH 109,758
Note: ffsE -

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange

thereof.
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M| ERME
15 RESERVES (continued) 15 G\ ()
(b) Company (b) ZE2AF
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
B3R E REBF &t
US$'000 us$'000 US$'000
TET FET TEr
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZENE—-A—R 194,098 13,733 207,831
Profit for the year R A - 6,909 6,909
Dividends [es) = (4,152) (4,152)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENF+-_A=+—H 194,098 16,490 210,588
Representing: B
2009 Final dividend EZRN 2 ZTTNF
proposed REARR S 4,840
Others Hh 11,650
Retained earnings as at N -—FTAF+-A=+—H
31 December 2009 ZRERA 16,490
At 1 January 2010 R-Z—TfE—F—§ 194,098 16,490 210,588
Profit for the year R A = 4,954 4,954
Dividends RE = (4,840) (4,840)
At 31 December 2010 R-B-—ZF+-A=+—H 194,098 16,604 210,702
Representing: Bp
2010 Final dividend EZRN 2T —FF
proposed REIR & 3,670
Others HAitb 12,934
Retained earnings asat HN—F—FF+-A=+—H
31 December 2010 ZREBA 16,604
Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law BRERERERARE(ZZEZT=F
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the 1ERThR ) FE34E KA R Bl A E 1240
Company, share premium of the Company is available Al NRA A H IR D& E [ 5k TR
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency ROMEARTIEEBEGBENDERE
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of RNARAABEIRZBEIAHRTE

Association of the Company.

Annual Report 2010 £3§ 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R &R
16 TRADE PAYABLES 16 BEFFBZIER
As at 31 December 2010, the ageing analysis of trade payables RZE—ZTF+ZA=+—H ENEH
is as follows: BRI
2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTER F=T
Current BN ER 22,754 12,448
31 - 90 days 31290k 3,224 353
91 — 180 days 91£180K 35 60
181 — 365 days 181%365K 17 182
26,030 13,043
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are REB v EMNEZEFTIRUNTEE
denominated in the following currencies: RN
2010 2009
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FTER F=T
Vietnam Dong HEE A 11,275 6,121
us$ ETT 14,130 6,474
Renminbi AR 625 448
26,030 13,043
17 BANK BORROWINGS 17 SBITHEEHE
Group Company
rEH KAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$’'000
FER FET FER F=ET
Long-term bank borrowings KHIR/TEE
- secured (Note 33 and 35) — B R (ME33%35) 19,538 19,345 - -
Current portion of long- RERITEEZ
term bank borrowings RO EAE8 1
— secured —FHE® (4,279) (3,123) = =
15,259 16,222 - -
Short-term bank borrowings R HIRTEE
- secured (Note 33 and 35) —BHEA (MF33%35) 14,308 14,518 - -
— unsecured — A 9,288 8,734 9,288 8,734
23,596 23,252 9,288 8,734
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17 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's long-term bank
borrowings were repayable as follows:

17 SBITHE (E)
R-_E—ZTF+_A=+—H A&EEZ
EHETEEBENATEEERS:

Group Company
rEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
US$°000 Us$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FER FET TEx F=T
Within 1 year —F RN 4,279 3,123 - =
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMEF 5,314 = - =
Between 2 and 5 years MEZRF 9,945 16,222 - =
19,538 19,345 - -
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate RMEBRENAEEEERNEEH
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: FIERHT :
Within 1-3 3-6
1 month months months Total
—BAR —-E={8A ZEXEA At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEr FTxr Txrn Txx
At 31 December 2009 N_TTNE
+-A=+—8
Total borrowings EELE 26,768 8,734 7,095 42,597
At 31 December 2010 N-_ZT—TF
+ZA=t—H
Total borrowings EE L 10,873 12,723 19,538 43,134
The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest-rate IR EE BN ARARREBEERNESEH
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: FIEBHAL T ¢
Within 1-3 3-6
1 month months months Total
-BARA —-Z=@A =EXfEA &t
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Txn FT=n FTxn FTET
At 31 December 2009 RZETNEF
+-A=t+—8
Total borrowings Ee@mE = 8,734 = 8,734
At 31 December 2010 RZE-TF
+-A=+-8
Total borrowings ER-ECk 329 8,959 - 9,288
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17 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 17 SITHESE
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the REEER -

balance sheet date were as follows:

(%)
AEBERFHERMT:

2010 2009
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
Us$ dollar us$ dollar
Y Eoili=gd ETT Few
Bank borrowings RITEE 3.1% 2.4% 3.1% 2.1%
The effective interest rates per annum of the Company at the REER ARREBEBREFENT
balance sheet date were as follows:
2010 2009
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
uss$ dollar uss$ dollar
P Haw FEIT etk
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.2% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1%
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their RITEENEASBEOREATE:.
fair value.
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in RITEENEESBRATERE:
the following currencies:
Group Company
rEH b N
2010 2009 2010 2009
Us$’000 us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FER F=E=T FER F=ET
us$ E= 42,146 39,163 8,300 5,300
New Taiwan dollar etk 988 3,434 988 3,434
43,134 42,597 9,288 8,734
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M| ERME
18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 18 EBRIEFRR]R
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary BEMSEHIORBREEANAEEEEFR
differences under the liability method using the principal tax EERERHNFEREJAA TR EZ5EG
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. &o
The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is BEMBHAEZEHNAT
as follows:
2010 2009
us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 8,050 9,497
Credited to income statement (Note 24) s ANz FK (FFE24) (537) (1,447)
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—8H 7,513 8,050
Provided for in respect of: B TF S EEL B -
2010 2009
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FTEx F=Ex
Accelerated tax depreciation IR IE T EE 8,249 8,939
Dividend withholding tax on undistributed = B[} /B 2 7] & 2 K & 7
profit in the PRC subsidiary B AR B TR B 127 -
Other temporary differences EfhE R = (863) (889)
7,513 8,050
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 18

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

Accelerated tax

EFEFRISI (8])
REFRLEMSHEERBE R RE
58 48 Rl B0 B RA #E R /O 45 88 AT ) M 2 Bh 10
T

EEFRSHAE

Dividend withholding
tax on undistributed
profits in the

depreciation PRC subsidiary Total
YEN NGRS

MERFIE BAHREENH &t
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Uss$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
E X EY ET £ T
At 1 January W—A—H 8,939 10,179 - - 8,939 10,179

(Credited)/charged to (S A) /B B UYsR

income statement (690) (1,240) 127 - (563) (1,240)
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 8,249 8,939 127 = 8,376 8,939

According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
profits of the PRC subsidiary of the Group derived since 1st
January 2008 will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors.

Deferred income tax assets

REFHECEMEHR L AKREETH
BEARE T NF—A-—HEEL
B A - AL Ik TONEIRE H R % F
FMIR10% BT R B IFANH -

EEFREHEE

Other temporary differences

HithErs=5
2010 2009
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FTEx Fx=T
At 1 January R—H—H (889) (682)
Charged/(credited) to income statement MR B, (5T A) s 26 (207)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (863) (889)

19 REVENUE 19 k&

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-
based industrial products including modified starch, glucose
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Turnover recognised
for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 was
US$336,107,000 and US$289,137,000 respectively.
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21

20 OTHER LOSSES - NET 20 HMEGEHE— B8
2010 2009
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx F=T
Net exchange loss &5 BB 55 (1,740) (3,825)
Net loss from sale of electricity HEE N FEIE (28) (278)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  WERLE
plant and equipment &8 (502) (44)
Sale of scrap materials EERHEE 318 231
Interest income from held-to-maturity REZNBHCUBEE
financial assets FEWA 61 234
Others HAh (185) 745
(2,076) (2,937)
EXPENSES BY NATURE 21 BUEHESBMZAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution SHERRA - HE R HA T RITHRFAZ AT
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BIENRZOTAT
2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx F=T
Changes in inventories of finished goods BN M AIE R 7T & B8
and work-in-progress (8,548) 4,230
Raw materials and consumables used 2 A REHFE o 250,095 175,256
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) EmEEEH (MES) 1,490 1,457
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) = 3t 58 PR A 8 (PR E6) 86 144
Auditor’s remuneration % 25 Bl B & 329 295
Depreciation on property, M- BERZEBETE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (FFEE7) 25,616 28,083
Provision for impairment of property, M BRE R ERERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) BB (EE7) 2,055 3,433
Operating leases expenses in respect of FRAEELMEERO
leasehold land -2 159 180
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EEBRFFEZ (HE28) 20,759 21,271
(Write back of)/provision for impairment of U E 5 BR FUR(E
trade receivables (Note 11) (Bt ),/ #
(HFaE11) (1,255) 2,350
Other expenses H b2 28,755 25,626
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKK  HE KD H
distribution expenses and X RITHFAX B
administrative expenses 319,541 262,325
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22

23

COMPENSATION TO FARMERS

On 8 October 2008, the Group received a decision from
the relevant government authority that the Group had been
in violation of certain environmental laws in Vietnam. The
Group was required to pay approximately US$16,000 and
US$7,713,000 as penalty and environmental fees respectively.
All these penalty and environmental fees were recorded in
the consolidated income statement in 2008. Due to this
environmental matter, farmer associations in Ho Chi Minh
City, Ba Ria-Vung Tau Province and Dong Nai Province in
Vietnam intended to file a court claim against the Group. On
13 August 2010, the Group agreed to provide approximately
US$11,807,000 (equivalent to VND218,949,000,000) to farmer
associations in Ho Chi Minh City, Ba Ria-Vung Tau Province and
Dong Nai Province in Vietnam to settle the claim. This has been
recorded in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2010. The Group paid the amount in two
instalments with 50% each in August 2010 and January 2011.
The Directors obtained a legal opinion and considered that
there is no further significant liability to any parties in relation
to this environmental matter.

FINANCE COSTS - NET

22 REIEM®

RZZFEZENF+ANRB AEEEXIEH
BNKEERASEEERBE S TRE
A2 R - AEEE D B 4316,000
%x&ﬂﬁO%%n%%Pm&%FE
2HZEIRMREEBRAER_ZZT
Aizwamﬁ$£ﬁ ARIEIRESE
B MEASHET BBEEERRRE
Z ERIBE AR AR AN S B REE(E -
RZZE—ZFNA+=0 AFEERER
HEMAEET BEHEBEEIREE Z
BERIBERE 711807000%73($B$5A
218,949,000,000F &) - =& 2 E M (E
E%ﬁ§:§*§¢+:ﬂ:+*8¢¢
EZiReRamRPEtt - AEEREDSM
HAAR = E—ZFTFNAR=E——F—
A EE §FRTF50% - £ EEBE
BERWRAIWE IR IRTEIHEEMA
TEBEEMERNEE-

23 MEXZH-$E

2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx SEEVr
Finance income — interest income BB A — R HARITIF X
on short-term bank deposits FEWBA (968) (747)
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENERX 1,420 1,235
Amortisation of discount on long-term ERNEREALTZ
payable to a related party (Note 34(d)) £ B R IE BT e 8
(KT5E34(d)) 276 359
Finance costs BB sz 1,696 1,594
Finance costs — net M B —FE 728 847

There is no interest expense on bank borrowings capitalised
under property, plant and equipment for current year. Interest
expense on bank borrowings for last year was stated after
deducting interest of US$472,000 capitalised under property,
plant and equipment.
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24

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

R MAX
A8 ) 758 TR 4R A A fil 5 AR A9 N SR A AR
SEEEMERRMERAKEFTE-

R RBERANTBRZAEHA B

2010 2009

Us$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") TEFH 5,119 6,681
Deferred income tax (Note 18) EIEFTISRE (MIE18) (537) (1,447)
4,582 5,234

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
applicable tax rate for Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation
Limited (“Vietnam Vedan”), which is a major subsidiary of the
Group, as follows:

28R B R ET RIS 3 Bl g A B9 P S T B2 {5 5
REASEZZMEAR KA (BE) R
MAERRR ([HAEAKA])WERB XM
FTEHIERM A ZRRMAT

2010 2009

Us$’000 Us$'000

FTEx F=T

Profit before tax B 7 B i ) 1,955 23,028

Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 15% IR TE R15% & 2 118

(2009: 15%) (ZZEZNF:15%) 293 3,454

Tax effects of different tax rates TRBEZ G E 129 25

Income not subject to tax B H B WA (1) (2)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 2 FE B R 2 3,542 1,659
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A 2RI ARG &R

tax losses (134) -
Tax losses for which no deferred ERMARBRLCAREHEEZ

income tax asset was recognised w8 753 98

Tax charge MIEX H 4,582 5,234

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
US$13,845,000 (2009: US$9,547,000) to carry forward against
future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in one to five
years.

EEMBHEEREERBRET S
R AR B AR i 3R T BE P A B A R AR
{ERER - AR BB R HERTI1E 13,845,000
EX (ZZTT A 4:9,547,000% 7T ) ] 45
AR R ERFH A - EFHIBER
—FERFMEIE-
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Enterprise income tax (“EIT")

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rates for the Group's operations in
Vietnam range from 15% to 25%, as stipulated in the
respective subsidiaries’ investment licenses.

(i)~ The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operation in the
PRC range from 12.5% to 25%.

Shanghai Vedan, Shandong Snowflake and Xiamen
Maotai are entitled to full exemption from EIT for the first
two years and 50% reduction in EIT for the next three
years, commencing from the first profitable year after
offsetting all unexpired tax losses brought forward from
the previous years. Shanghai Vedan, Shandong Snowflake
and Xiamen Maotai have already triggered their first year
of tax exemption entitlement in 2005, 2006 and 2008
respectively.

(i)~ Singapore/Hong Kong
No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year.

(iv)  Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in
Taiwan is 25%.

25 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
US$4,954,000 (2009: US$6,909,000).
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25

FRr8MAX (&])

I EFTEH
EMEHIZY R RAEEEMNAE
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26 DIVIDENDS 26 KR
The dividends paid in 2010 and 2009 were US$4,840,000 —EEERIZFFENFZENRE D
(0.317 US cents per ordinary share) and US$4,152,000 (0.273 7l /54,840,000 7t ( & % & i Ix0.3173%
US cents per ordinary share), respectively. The directors i) X%4,152,0003 jt ( & % T 3/ f%0. 273
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 0.240 US E) FEERRNARAKREFRE
cents per ordinary share, totalling US$3,670,000 (2009: f%0.240% 1l - & #£3,670,000% L (=&
US$4,840,000). Such dividend is to be approved by the T L5 14,840,000 70) - B R E W F
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. RENEERRBF NS L8t E - BREM
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. SRR D RBR L FE AR B o
2010 2009
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER F=ET
2010 interim dividend, paid of nil (2009: BEff=F— i‘#‘ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
0.273 US cents) per ordinary share, paid FREBRRT
(= Eﬁdi
0.27331) - 4,152
2010 final dividend, proposed of BT —ZFRH
0.240 US cents (2009: 0.317 US cents) Pz B A A
per ordinary share 0.240%A11
(ZFTNF:
0.317%Al) 3,670 4,840
3,670 8,992
The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed T TER-ETAEDMNREREE
during 2010 and 2009 have been disclosed in the consolidated WED BIEEENTIEAREELRNES
income statement in accordance with the disclosure WK IWE o
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
27 (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 B (EE) 27
(a) Basic () E=XF

Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

BRER (BE) BMNEADAE
ﬁ/\ﬁfﬁ(l&ﬂé)/iﬁiﬂfﬁ%‘uiﬁﬂﬂ
BT E AR INETFHHGE

2010 2009
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx Tt
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners NAEEB NG
of the Company (E48) & F (1,480) 17,983
Weighted average number of B BT AR T E
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (A F5H) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic (losses)/earnings per share BRERN (EE) &F
(US cents per share) (FRRZEA) (0.10) 1.18
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27

28

29

(LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 27 BER(ER) 2% (&)
(b) Diluted (b)
Diluted (losses)/earnings per share is same as basic BE_ T ZFLR_ZTTAF+=
(losses)/earnings per share as there is no dilutive A=+—HLFE BREEET
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2010 and A Sk#EE (BB BAEGR
2009. EAR(E18) BFER-
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 28 EERMMAX (BEEEHM)
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION)
2010 2009
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TITE& K% &RER 17,780 17,173
Bonuses TEAT = 1,822
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R iR& A — & 78 Z s+ 2 1,462 1,436
Other employee benefits H g 8 12 5 1,517 840
20,759 21,271
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 29 EERE#HEFA

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored defined contribution retirement
plans for its employees in Xiamen, Shandong and Shanghai,
the PRC. The Group contributes to the plans at rates ranging
from 8% to 22% of the basic salaries predetermined by
local governments. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees. For the year ended 31 December 2010,
the Group has contributed approximately US$415,000 (2009:
US$570,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the Group
contributes to stated-sponsored employees’ social insurance
scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group contributes
to the scheme at a rate of 15% of the employee’s salary. The
state-sponsored social insurance scheme is responsible for
the entire obligations payable to retired employees. For the
year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has contributed
approximately US$920,000 (2009: US$753,000) to the
aforesaid state-sponsored social insurance scheme.
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30
MANAGEMENT

(a)

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable
to the directors of the Company by the Group during the

year are as follows:

EEREREEEROTH

(@) AFEAKERARFAEREENR
T H B 2R T

2010 2009

us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Fees e - =
Basic salaries and allowances % 7 K 2 B 1,109 1,188
Discretionary bonuses )15 2 A FE AL = 1,798
1,109 2,986

None of the directors of the Company waived any

emoluments during the year (2009: Nil).

The remuneration of every director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2010 is set out below:

AERARBESY EREEMH
M(—ZETAF &) -

Bz 22— ZF+_A=+—A81
FEARAISESTNEMEINOT

Discretionary Other
Fees Salary bonuses benefits (i) Total
Name of Director BEH? e ¥e BEBERRRA E A R() G
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn Tin Tin TEr TEn
Executive Director BES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEEEE - 341 - 13 354
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXAE - 200 - 13 213
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEELE - 305 - 13 318
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 - 13 163
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng AHELE = = - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRERE - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong by it - - - 12 12
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray REmEE - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen fEEE - - - 12 12
Total Ch - 996 - 113 1,109
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EERERTHEBOTM (1)

MANAGEMENT (continued)

The remuneration of every director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2009 is set out below:

BE2_TETZhF+_A=+—H1t
FEARNAB)SEESHNEMES 0T

Discretionary Other
Fees Salary bonuses benefits (i) Total
Name of Director BEEpg e ¢ MERREL  HoEF() &t
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET TER S S TET
Executive Director HiTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung SRl - 354 1,204 13 1,571
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEEE - 200 548 13 761
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BRELE - 317 23 13 353
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BREE - 150 23 13 186
Mr. Wang, Joel J. TERLE - 50 - 4 54
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng ABREE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRELAE - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HIERTAE - - - 12 12
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBmEE - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen g - - - 12 12
Total CH - 1,071 1,798 17 2,986
Notes: B &
(i) Other benefits include travelling allowance. (i) E R e EERER
(b)  The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest by AEEMEFERNZREHTMNA AL

in the Group for both years were also directors and their
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.

(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid to (©)
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or as
compensation for loss of office.

There are no outstanding share options as at 31
December 2010 and 2009.

116 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited bk /3 BB (428%) AR A =

ATHRES RENHESCEHR L
XA

AFEREIBAOARBDEERAEE
Af&EHEMALTZNME - ERR
BMAREE R R BB E -

R-F-—FER-FEAETA
=+ BB R AT o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IS HRR M A

31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 EBEEZRSE
2010 2009
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx F=T
Profit before income tax & P15 3% Al & A 1,955 23,028
Adjustments for: BATIEE A% -
— Finance costs — net (Note 23) — BB - FE
(Kt3E23) 728 847
— Interest received from held-to-maturity ~ — 2 Wik A = 2 # 2 B 7
financial assets (Note 20) BEZME (M5E20) (61) (234)
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME BERZETE
equipment (Note 7) (P 3E7) 25,616 28,083
— Provision for impairment of property, —WE - BE REERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) B (MEE7) 2,055 3,433
— (Write back of)/provision for —EWE S ERFRE
impairment of trade receivables (BB, /B
(Note 11) (KEzET1) (1,255) 2,350
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EEEEE (MiE8)
(Note 8) 1,490 1,457
- Amortisation of land use rights — T fh B8 (P 7E6)
(Note 6) 86 144
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ —H& Y% - HE M & H
equipment (see below) & (R TxX) 502 44
31,116 59,152
Change in working capital (excluding EEES B CRFTWE
the effects of exchange differences on HEBRERAEEEZ
consolidation) MEH Z%8)
— Inventories —F& (17,597) 6,900
— Trade receivables, prepayments and —EWE SRR BN
other receivables SRIB K EoAih fE W SRR (12,237) (2,160)
— Trade payables, accruals and other —ENE SR Bt
payables B R & E b pE T ROR 20,461 (2,502)
— Amount due from minority L= INGIE
shareholder of a subsidiary KIA (20) 82
— Amount due to a related party —FEN B REE AT IR 237 (42)
Cash generated from operations ¥BELEZRSE 21,960 61,430
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 RBEEZHE (8])

(continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

ERARERERAN BHEYE BENR
R Z PSRBT

2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTXEx F=T
Net book amount (Note 7) BREFE (FE7) 668 88
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  WE R
plant and equipment (Note 20) Z AR (fifsE20) (502) (44)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEYVE HWERKEMS
plant and equipment KIE 166 44
32 COMMITMENTS 32 #&iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAXREIE

The Group’s capital expenditure contracted for at the

AEERGEERERINERELEZ

balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows: BEARZHIAT
2010 2009
USs$‘000 Us$'000
FEx F=T

Contracted but not provided for EEESEES

Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 825 1,593
Land use rights - {5 R R - 1,273
Investment in associate (Note) REEE Qa2 ®RE (M) 5,190 =
6,015 2,866

Note: Details of investment are disclosed in Note 10.

The Company had capital commitment of US$5,190,000
(2009: Nil) in respect of its investment in associate at 31

December 2010.

A E A5,190,
Fom)o
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32

33

34

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and building under non-

32 KiE(HE)
(b) KERHRIE
AN BRI 1 i K 42 F B9 R A] A
LERAMARRREZFHHRER

cancellable operating leases as follows: ERIEMENT
2010 2009
Us$°000 Us$'000
TER FET
Not later than one year —FR 120 126

Later than one year and not later ZERFR

than five years 474 475
Later than five years L F & 3,104 3,223
3,698 3,824

The Company did not have any significant commitment
under operating lease at 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements, as at
31 December 2010, the Company has given guarantees for
bank borrowings of subsidiaries amounting to US$102,300,000
(2009: US$138,654,000) of which US$59,165,000 (20009:
US$101,357,000) has not been utilised.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) The table below summarises the related party and nature
of its relationships with the Company as at 31 December
2010:

Related party
BREAL

RS T A B EARALE

33 ERARE
BB BRRNER2AFEEIN R_Z
—ZEFE+_A=+—R8 ARAAEKB
N AR IRITEE 2 ¥E1RE102,300,000
EX(ZZTZ N :138,654,000% 7T)
H H59,165,000 c (Z T T h&:
101,357,000 7T ) M A EH A

3 BRAEATLTES
(@ TR =_ZTE—ZFF+ = A
—t+—BEHEEALTEBREEAN
NAMBEERMLEE :

Relationship with the Company
ER 7 A B HY B8 £

Taiwan Vedan
£k

A substantial shareholder of the Company

ARRARHEERR
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 FRAEALES ()
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EAXAEBEAEEBPEFHEEALT
out in the normal course of the Group's business are as ETHNEARSAT

follows:

2010 2009
Note Us$°000 Us$'000
k=2 TEx F=T

Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan AaERTEEER (i) 4,137 3,590

Technological support fee paid to [\ & /& BR S5 24l

Taiwan Vedan XIEE (i) 2,441 1,641

Agency commission income I ER & /& IR ST e A28

received from Taiwan Vedan Bl A (i) 149 103

Notes: B s -

0) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) KRB EERERNEEEALTHEE
the related party were conducted in the normal course R BEBTET BERRE
of business at prices and terms no less favourable than RTBRARBEREME=EFF
those charged to and contracted with other third party R G AT RET S B RAGRK
customers of the Group.

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the iy ARBNEERAZERHHEBRF
transactions were carried out in the normal course of ¥%i#ErT WAREABREL
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the R E -
terms of underlying agreements.

() Key management compensation (0 XEEBEAEMS
Key management includes all executive directors. The FTEFEEBEABRIEMENTES B
compensation paid or payable to key management for NERENEBEBABEZBETIRE
employee services is shown below. NS AT
2010 2009
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTER F=7T
Salaries and other short-term HH & H b 5G BRE B 1R A
employee benefits 1,048 2,925
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3 AREALES (&)

(d) Year-end balances with the related party (d) EBEEBEEATZEREGERX
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had the following RZB—ZF+-_A=+—H0 &%
significant balances with the related party: BEBHEATZEZHERAT
2010 2009
Note US$’000 Us$'000
k=2 TEx F=T
Current: BNER :
Trade receivable from Taiwan EREERAES
Vedan (Note 11) AR (K aET 1) (i) 250 267
Due to Taiwan Vedan }f;ﬁé\fé%ﬂz (i) 323 172
Current portion of the amount ﬁfﬁﬁﬁgﬁ%’if1 é\/%*
due to Taiwan Vedan in Bk £ 7008 B 23 2549
connection with assignment of
trademarks (i) 1,957 1,871
Non-current: FERNER
Non-current portion of the FHEZERERRENGE
amount due to Taiwan Vedan UR P50 IE JE BN ER 38 40
in connection with assignment
of trademarks (ii) 2,074 4,031
Notes: MsE
(i) All these balances with related parties are unsecured, (i) BREEANLTHTA GBI mIEE -
interest-free and have no fixed terms of payment. %R R EE E R R
(i)~ The amount represents the fair value payable to Taiwan (i  ZAREHEER Tﬁﬁ?%%*ﬁ%—
Vedan for the assignment of certain trademarks. It is FE & &K 3 cH/AMH
payable by seven equal annual instalment commencing _Z?Eti ﬁ — El;t S+ H
on 1 January 2007. The original face amount was BEYNERRE - RAEER
US$15,014,000 and was discounted to fair value using a 15,014,0003 7T ' WiIRAR R E &g
rate based on the borrowing rate of 4.7% at the date of EEAZEBENRITEAEZF
assignment of the trademarks (Note 23). ERRERTE (HF23) -
35 BANKING FACILITIES 35 S|MITIEH

Save as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements,
the Group's bank borrowings of US$33,846,000 as at 31
December 2010 (2009: US$33,863,000) were secured by
legal charges over certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment (Note 7) with net book amount of approximately
US$22,715,000 (2009: US$14,206,000).

BREERERMEFIZIMBESE I A
SEER-_Z—ZFTF+=-_A=+—H
Z R 1T E33,846,000% T (==
T f, % : 33,863,000 7T ) A BR @ %
E#22,715,000( T (ZETEZE L F:
14,206,000 7)) 2 & T AREE M - K
S (MEE7) 2 A E AR IE L K38

PR &
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